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Coalmining began in Poyntonin or before the skteenth eentury i indeed, small-scde
drift miningmay well have been urderway by around 1300jt ended on 30 Agust
1935, wlen the bst shift came upfromthe Rk Pits. In landscgpeterms,coa mining
has left arich but diverselegacy ontheeastside of Poynton (east of Towvers Road and
Waterloo Road, soeast of the Red Rock Fault; sams futherwestlie at depthstoo
deep for eamnomic extradion). Caalmining, thecanal, acompex of raillways and
tramways seving the pts, packets of industrial housigy smal-scde related
production sites ovarious kindsand abad<ground landsape refl ecting both
agricultureand assocéted settementcontempwoary with industralisation all comhine
to offer atract of land of archaeological andhistoric importance which isunique to
EastCheshire. We shouldaways remenber, when lookingat Poyn t o rerdage, h
that EastCheshirehas nocoamininglegacy otherthan thepits focusedon Poynton
andfadingoutinto neghbouingtownships a$ar southas Macclesfield

Thisindusty was never on the sde of mining in Lancashire, Yorkshire, Staffordshre
or Co. Duham, dependingon coal seams which were comparatively narrow and
muchfaulted so quicky exhausted Here, moden, very large pits have failed to
obliterate al evidence of earlier works; early pits were widely dispesed while the later
industy focusedon Princed ¥Vood, Hakley and Anson Pi. Poynton etains,
therefore, traces of very small,early pits as vell aslarger, later shéts with
increasingly mechanised leadgear and brick buildings, each conreded with dfferent
phases oftransport;there is alsoa sctter of smal-scde industrial

housingwhich is very differentin kindto thenucleated pit villages of parts of Co.
Durham, forexample, Yorkshireor Nottinghamshire, dispersed in stort rowsamong
green fields andhedgerows.

Offering as it does a forgentury long history of mininghts lands@peis uniqueand
of aquality thatshaild be both ecognised and acwmrded protection undr thecurrent
HousingMarket Partnership interms ofits regional higoric value. Addiionally, the
less-well-knownpitsi largely the ealier mines - poseconsicerable difficulties in
terms ofnew development, dnce the raeture and diredion of sub-surface galleries and
tunnelsare not well established.

Followingdiscussions ofhesessues betveen myself and Poynton Courxil ealy in
2013,1 was invited tocarry out anhistoric landscapend heritage assessrent, to
explorethe speal of the remains?

! A note on nomenclature:it wascommon in NW England for the term éminebto be used of a seam of
coal, with what we might today term a éminefcalled a pit, and a group of pits a wlliery. This
terminology isretanedin WHS. Here, for ease of use and to avoid ambiguity, | have broken with this
convention, usng theterm 6 mebasanalternative to ¢itdand preferring Gseamdthroughout in its
modern meaning.

2 This heritage assesament is basedon aetial photographs accessed throuch the Cheshire Historic
Environment Record (CHER: my thanksto Rob Edwards) and historic maps through John Rylands
University Library Map Coll ection (my thanks to Donna Shermar), the publications Poynton, A
Coalmining Village, by W. H. Shercliff, D. A. Kitching and J. M. Ryan(Stackport, 1983: henceforth
WHS), Poynton, A Thriving Community, by W. H. Shercliff (Stokport, 1996), The Industrial



For ease ofpresentation, in what follows | will break downeastern Poyntoninto three
areas, as follows:

1 an areadefined by Poynton Brook, Waterloo Road/Coppice
Road/AnsonRoad and the MiddewoodWay, forming the sout-western quarter of
the suvey areg

2 an areadefined by the MiddlewoodWay and the eastan boundry of
the township, faningthe eastern, yoland quarter of the stuly area;

3 theremaining half, an areabounded by Anson Road, Towers Rad,
Norbury Brook and theMiddlewood Way.

Area 1

Within amea 1, coalmining has certainly occurred in four localities, at(A)
Accommodation (in thesouth west caner near Wardsend), at (B) Waterloo House(on
Waterloo Road), (C) at Smithfield, on Coppice Road, and(D) on both sides of Coppice
Road around Alma Cottages and across the road over to Higwhaee there was
extensive mining activity in the 18th and early 19th centu@ser activity visible in
this landsgpeincluded (E) brick-making, pumpng water, a setion ofrrailway,
woodland managementand farming.

A Acocommodation: this names used by WHS of 4mines atand rnear Wardsend
- Accommodation Deep, Upper Accommodation, Lower Accommodation and Deep
Accommodation. Accommodation Degp is in Adlington (othawise Wardsend Pit),
so will notbefurtherdiscussd here. Accaimmodatio n 6 | sesttahseam| o w
encounteed at pitsin thearea, at 897ft (273m)at the Lawrance Pit and 678t (207m)
at Lady Pit.® It occurs attached tothis particular locality on the 188%dition of the6
inch Cheshiré&heet XXIX, and on earlier ¥&century mapsttached to individual
pits. Thespoil heaps ofDegp Accommodation or Shady Oaleit (SJ 931827)ie
immedetely east of Waterloo Road. Lower Accommodation lies at theend of what
was orce a hedged and banked accesstrack from the sart of The Coppice, along the
eastan sideof the garden of Bridge Cottage, with what was thePoynton Royal
Observer Corps bunkémmedately to its south.In 1826, howevera pit named
Lower Accommodatiomay further up the Coppice, with Higher Accommodation
beyond &t SJ936826and Acconmodation Rise in the middle of theoodland
(5J938826all now lost) Mining has, thereforemigrated westward$ut still using
the same group of name&he mines which are stl visible belong totheealy 19™
century, thaugh reference to cokeovens sugjest exploitation at l@stinto the second
guarter of that century; a short legth of rails conneded oneet least ofthepits tothe
cokeovensin 1826 butall were apparently disused by 1840.A row of cottages on
Dickens Laneeast of Waterloo Road was built to house

Archaeology of North-West Engand by O. Ashmore (Mancheste, 1982) aset of web pagescompaosed
and designedby David Kit ching (www.brocross com/poynton/collieries/: henceforth KIT), A Look at
Poynton, by D. A. D. Mclintosh (Landscape History Project, University of Manchester Extra-Mural
Dept., 1983), amodern copy of the Vernond estatemap of 1849 with field-namesadded, kindly
providedby Ann Harris (through the good officesof Eileen Shore of Poynton History Society), and my
own fieldwork. It should be notedthat my fieldwork hasbeencongrainedby the need to keep to
footpaths, etc, so it has not been possble to check all sites on the ground. Several individuals kindly
commented on the first version of the reparbst particularlyPavid Kitchinghas very generously
provided the fruits of hisarches sinc&983 which | have tried to incorporate as fully as possifiie
this second versioT o all go my grateful thanks.

3 Dept. of Scientific and Industrial Reseach, Geological Survey of Great Britain, Geology of the
Courtry around Stockport and Knutsford (HMSO, 1963) platelll .



http://www.brocross.com/poynton/collieries/

colliers; these were constructed as bacdkbacks, but only one pair remains so (253,
255 Dickens Lane), the others all having beamverted beforeWWIl. These were
built in theealy 19" century by the Vernon Estate By the 1870s thecottages on
Dickens Lane immedately west of Waterloo Road had been added.

B Waterloo Pit; The cental part ofWaterloo Hous, a grade-ll listedbuilding,
was abeam-engine house built in 1815to wind coal from two nearby shaftthe
battle was also commemorated lacally by the constriction of White Nancy above
Bollington). A groupof buildings isvisible here on bottthe 1849estatemapand
the 18816-inch OS. A widegap in thepog-war housing on thewest side of
Waterloo Road may imply that a minegallery ran in this drection as far as the Red
RockFault. The cottages immediatelynorth ofWaterloo Housewere rebuilt in the
ealy pod-war period.

[llus. 1:Lookingnorth up Waterloo Road, theAccommodation and Waterloo Pits
with assaiated features: note theridge and furrow east of Accommodation (basl on
1970s ertical phato R45 N4053.




C Smithfield; acausavay for atramway is visible on the 184%®statemap
runningoff CoppiceRoad; on the 1885-inch mep, this clearly comes out onto the
road east of Shrigley Road North. It was dill marked on the 1910

OS.There werewo coadmineshere bothnamed Snithfield by WHS, the debris
from which spead alongthe south isle of CoppiceRoad as far asthe field to the
west ofCoppiesideFarm. The tramroadcdditionallybrought coablown to Higher
Smithfieldfrom the Wren's Nest and Gees Pitst€és in EIm Woodto be taken
away from heravestwarddy cart(see below)This strip on thesouth sideof
CoppiceRoad has since leen developedfor housng. Higher Smithfield was oneof
the Poynton pts waked with a hasegin (others includedGees New, Horse
Pastures, Gees Deep and Waterloo). Three cottages on thenorth sideof theroad
were aready built by 1826.

[llus 2:Smithfield Pits, on CoppiceRoad, eviderced by extensivewaste tips and
causavay, see asotheextensiveeathworks between Higlaneand Copprce Road (OS
6-inch XXX, North-West, 1910)
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D Codpit Field/Hig Lane; thefield-name CoalpitField occurs on thel849
estatemapat the north-west caner of what is nowPoynton Fruit Farm, sauth of
CoppiceRoad (lllus 2,where Pumpng St a t i markéd). No it has been

identified here; the pumping station was for drinking water. There are spoil tips and
pondson the noth sde of CoppiceRoad, towardswhat was in 1849 Hig Lane
(83937833, which are visible on both thd 849and 1881 mapsdjacent to buildings

and alarge pond (in 1881). Theremains ae sketched on the 191@S (lllus 2,

above); the lrgepond is gil there (S193678317, and is now amoreregular oval in
shape. Immediately east of thecompex of buildings atHig Lanea group offields in
1849all contaired theword 6 lack @Near Blackcroft, Far Blackcroft, Blackcroft),

again suggesting coamining @though it could indicate peay soil). In 1826six
abandonedhaftswere recordeth the fields between Coppice Road and Hig Lane
quarry, butnone of these shafts are in the disturbed area of ground where there is
gorse and ponds. There is spoil from the Clajtane Side Pit in the gardens of the
houses opposite Alma Cottages and alsthe allotments to the rear

E Further Landscape Fedures;

Thefield-name Brick Kiln Field occurs on theeastside of Waterloo Road on the 1849
estatemap. This suggests brick makirg: bricks were usedextensiwely in the
coaminesand ths field-namewas immedetely adjacent to theDeep Accommodation
Pit, in thevicinity of Lynden (Illus. 1).



Engine Field also accursin 1849 as dield-name, immedaitely south of Cppice Road
centred onSJ934829.There was a large beam pumping engine known as the Worth
Old Engine where Alma Cottages now stéiids. 2). This may have been the first
steam pump in Poyntom useby c1780, but wadisusedand largely dismantled by
1826.

Therailway between Lady Pit and Quarry Pit ran on a selfacting incline (the Quarry
Incline) acoss thdields between Middlewood Rad and AnsonRoad. Theprobable
lineremains visilbe in the pasture. There were a number of late 18th/ early 19th
century shafts in the fields on both sides of thddine.

Illus. 3: Standard gauge railway inclimenning east from Lady Pit to Quarry and
Anson Pis (OS 6-inch CreshireShed XX, colour edition 1881, sureyed 1871-2)
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The Coppicewoodland was moreextensivein 1849than the pesent, with field-name
evidence of assarting (conversion ofwoodland toagriculture) to both thewvest (Gib
Ridding) and east (MaudRidding). Timber was important to the minng industy; the
useof timber for scughs (drainagetunnels)goes bad at leastto the 17" century and
usefor pit props begins around1800,from which time there will have been heary
demandfrom thecollieries. TheCoppicetoday is without any trees muchmorethan a
century old, though arange of groundfloratypical of ancient woodand (bluebells,
dogb s ercamy, woodanemornes, et) suggeststhatit is arcient woodand (i.e. it has
been woodkd for at least théast 500 years). The coppicestods do not look atient,
suggestingomparatively few cuts, but the use of coppice in the field names strongly
suggests managed woodland over a significant period.



Field nameselsewhere in the areasuggest mixed agriculture with bath livestock(as
Far Highmeadow, GiAf Croft) and plaughing (as Marl Jur, CornField). Most of the
fields betveen Waterloo Road, Th&Coppie, Coppice Rad and Poynton Fruit Fam
today retain suface traces ofridgeand furrow of the type formedby horseploughing.
This could lave occurred at any time tetween the17M-ealy 20" centuries, ending
beforeor duringthe war in mostplaces. There is someevidence of subsurface
draining, with aherring-bone drainage system viside in air photographs on theuastue
north of The Coppie.

Area 2

Area 2 comprises théighest pat of theparish, etween c. 150and 190maboveOD,
and isamongthe norerura areas. Mining was mosly small-scde and compaatively
ealy; shaft depressions asgreads of waste naterial provide the bulk othe
eviderce. Thissuvey works across theareafrom southto nath, dividing the pits irtio
three goups: A, thepits from the southern boundary of the @rish as far north as the
NelsonPits, entred onEIm Woods;B, thegroup of pits aroundBarlow House Farm;
and C, the Caal Pits.

A Mining in andaroundElm Woods

[llus. 4:Waste Tipat the Adventure pit




A group ofsmal-scale pits ies betveen EImWoodsand the @rish boundry to the

south (ge illus 5). From the south,a small redangular enclosure of trees and

grown-out helging on the east bank ofthe canal at SJ946826 maks thesite of

Hempy Bank Pit and housewhich isincludedon the 184%statemap;its existence

is emhedded in the field name immediately to the northi d&ield abovethe Housed

The pit was abandoned before the building of the c@nalay pit supplying puddle
clay for canal maintenanday alongsidethecanal in 1911at thenorthern end ofthe

field. A clump of trees arounda pit at the southern end ofthe clay extradion should
probably beinterpreted as arother small clay pit dueto thelack of spoil. Two mires

nearby named by WHS havenot been identified dueto problems of acess, Gees

Pitstead and Wrens Nest (WWHS p. 19, nos 13, 14); bothel within EIm Wood

(formaly EIm Bed Wood). Gees Pit is documened in 1794. Ttere are, though,

several mines soth and east of thewood. Two pits with assocated small veste tips
are clealy visible, onein Kirk Field and oneon thefield bounday with Barley Croft

(@l thesefields are now a single pasture); thefirst of these is the mne named by

WHS as Red. Thetheris Hedge. Adventure is marked by a larger quantity of

waste(illus. 4) onboth sdes of theaccess ad to Haresteads Farm at SJ948828;the

two separate spoil kegps, divided by the access rad, may suggest two shafts

[llus 5: TheElm Wood area, pits, gangway andthe cana




Before the constriction of the Maccledield-Marple Railway, theroad layout north of
EIm Wood wes veay different, with Lyme Road |loopingback to join CoppiceRoad at
Elm Bed Road. Here several cottages ae of 19" century date, ircluding the Daisy
Cottages andThe EIms, the dtter with adate stone 0f1880. Thel849estatemap
reveds thedisrupton totheroad layout dready causedby the canal, which cut EIm
Bed Woodand theroad runningalong its norttern edge, as well as isolatingthe house
at thebotom end ofField abovethe House fromroad access. A pithamedEIm Beds
in WHS lay close to EIm Beds Road and the carighis aeais now builtover and the
preciselocation ofthe ptis notclear.

North of EImWood ly Gangway Field. dGangwaybhereis likely to relateto a
causavay style tradk giving accessto the mines, owhich rerrow-gaugeiron rails

were laid to enable hases to pullheavier loads. Theunderlying roadways built up of
wastefrom the minesvere asignificant aspect of the lacd lands@pe in thelate
eighteenth andfirst hdf of the nireteenth centuries. A particularlygoodexample lies
north-west of the Mirers Arms andNoggin Farm in Adlington (1937818, maked

on the 19110S ad stil carrying afootpathfrom Wardsend. At EIm Wood,a
gangway ran along the southern boundafjthe woodand then across the canal and
via Elm Beds Road and Coppice Road ontdfittlds to reach Higher Smithfield Pit
as above

WHS locaed Lower Reform, Venture, Long Chimney and Hgher Reform pits
clustered totheeast of Hm Wood. These names refer to just two shafts situated to the
east and west oHilltop Cottage at SJ1947832(illus. 5: on he 1911 OSXOId Shaf tisé
marked alongsided_ongchimneydand thee is low-level disturbance stll visible

where wastehas been levelled immediately west of Hilltop Cottagédilltop Cottage
was thewinding engine housdor both shaftsalready in sevice by c. 180. The
@Reformb anme perhaps Efl ects the Great Reform Bill of 1832. Higher Reform isless
obvioudy visible tochy butit is assaiated with dsturtance and spoil norh-east of
Hilltop Cottage at SJ948832 immediately north ofand underneath theaccess rad to
Hill TopFarm. Thereis a disusd stoneguarry at SJ1949833, meked on the 1911
OS, now with trees aroundit. The stonevas prdyably usedto build Hill Top Farm,
amongotherbuildings.

At VernonWharf a basinwas presendtn the 184%statemapon theeast side ofthe
cana where coal couldbe loaded onto bats. Thisis gill navigable. inmediately to
thenorth theNelsonpits lie on both sides of theanal. Thesewere re-developed in the
late 184090n the site of the Gees Engine and Bye Bits presumalby named for the
Admiral. NelsonPit (west of thecanal) has recently been redevelopedas apoint of
aacessto thecanal, with extensivecar parking and amoden Visitor Cente. A
subgantial waste tiplies betveen thecanal and te lower car park, at SJ945834. st
of thecanal, Higher NelsonPit (sunk 1847) isiotaacessble. On the 18990S 6-inch,
aspoiltip is showrright up aginstthe canal opposte NelsonPit (at SJ946833).Low



level earthworks sightly furthernorthat SJ946834, viside aaoss the anal fromthe
towpath, may represent theremains ofa further small spoiltip. Brick Kiln Field
immedately to thenorth, behind the marina, probably refl ects the site of a lrick
works praducing building matrial for use in the mines. Immediately west ofthe cana
at Mount Vernonarow of earlycottages has arvived on thewest side of Lyme Road,
with adate stoneof 1835.Large-scde subsdence was aready occurring west of EIm
Wood inthe 19" century, which is today marked by a wide expanseof water used for
fishing, alongside thecanal opposte the phying fields.

lllus. 6: TheEastan pits, Higher Nelsonto Higher Canal (based onOS6-inch 1899)

B Barlow House

WHS has thee mines inthesmall stean valley runningwestwards towards thecanal
south ofBarlow House. At thewesten end is theVictoria Mine, which isshown on
theOSfor 1899 it lay at the northern end of the spoil located immediatelyadbe
canal. There is also coal waste visible lo@ $ightly raisedarea southof the steam at
SJ947836 revealed byheroat-bal of afallen tree (marked but umamed, illus 6)
TheDingle At was inthe stream valley whereit is unreturally wide, at S1948836;
acain thereis coa waste visble where recent drainage has accurred and rusty
corrugated ron edson the nortlrn edge of thestrean cutare probably relevant.
Furthereast WHS has Numér 10 Pit which is part of the Middlecale Colligrput
this lies across the town boundamyLyme Handley A raisedarea above the stream
at SJ1951835ismarked on the 189@nd 1910 OS adBarlow Cottages, probably
occupied by minersThecottages were already present onliBé9estatemap.WHS
notes a tamway from theDingle At andHigher Canal Pit to thecanal. This followed
thelineof thetrack (themoden footpath)visible on illus. 6east of Barlow House and
met with a short line from Higher Canal Pit before crossing the canal to reach the
Canal Pit



